
 

 

 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY  FEBRUARY 4, 

2019 IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA . 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick    leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 
 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

G. Roll Call  

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss 

any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda 

for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one motion being 

made for all items on the Consent Agenda 
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting January 22, 2019. 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

2. Motion to Approve Liquor License Renewal for BP Amoco ς 401 Parkside Drive, 
West Branch, Iowa. 

3. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 
 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 

1. Discussion Item: Receive Presentation / Explanation Regarding Cubby Park 
Deliverables and Timeline from (Prime Contractor) Needham Excavating Inc. 

2. Resolution 1776 ς A Resolution to Approve a Fund Balance Reserve Policy and 
to Approve Funding of $72,089 Toward an Eventual (3 month of operations) 
Fund Balance Goal of $459,072. 

3. Resolution 1778 ς A Resolution Approving an Employee Salary Adjustment 
(Market Survey Adjustment). 

4. Motion to Approve Salary Plan intended to be incorporated in City 
!ŘƳƛƴƛǎǘǊŀǘƻǊΩǎ wŜŎƻƳƳŜƴŘŜŘ .ǳŘƎŜǘΦ 

5. Discussion Item: Consider Separating the Building Permit Forgiveness from 
the Homeowner Rebate Program. 

6. Motion to Approve Revenue Estimates to be incorporated in the City 
!ŘƳƛƴƛǎǘǊŀǘƻǊΩǎ wŜŎƻƳƳŜƴŘŜŘ .ǳŘƎŜǘΦ 

7. Motion to Approve Department non-salary Expenditures (City Goals that will 
be funded). 

8. Resolution 1777 ς A Resolution Accepting Bids and Awarding the Construction 
Contract for the College Street Bridge and Second Street Project. 

9. Resolution 1779 ς A Resolution Establishing New Capital Funds to Pay for New 
Capital Projects (for projects related to the I-80 expansion and the Library 
Parking Lot Improvement). 

10. Resolution 1780 ς A Resolution Authorizing the Transfer of Funds. 
 

H. Reports 
 

1. /ƛǘȅ !ŘƳƛƴƛǎǘǊŀǘƻǊΩǎ wŜǇƻǊǘ 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Hearsays 

 

I . Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

((The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are 

not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 
 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               January 22, 2019  
Council Chambers                                                                 7:00 p.m. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch regular City Council meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.   

Mayor Laughlin then invited the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the 

Pledge of Allegiance.   Roll call: Council members:  Colton Miller, Brian Pierce, Jodee Stoolman and Nick 

Goodweiler were present.  Jordan Ellyson was absent.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City 

staff:  City Administrator Redmond Jones, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, Park & Recreation Director Melissa 

Russell, Library Director Nick Shimmin, Fire Chief Kevin Stoolman and Police Chief Mike Horihan 

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLA MATIONS  

Michael LeClere, from Martin Gardner Architecture, presented two videos produced from the visual referencing 

exercises and chip game which were conducted at the public meeting regarding the use of the Croell property site.   

LeClere thought the buildings on the west side of Scheme 1 Development had to be reduced to two story 

buildings and Scheme 2 had a wider, more open center.  Both schemes tried to block the view of the grain 

bins on the north.  Parking space availability was a concern expressed by Colton Miller and Brian Pierce.  

Mike will submit a final report and suggested it accompany the RFPs when they are sent out. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

There was no public comment.   
 
 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO AC TION  
Motion to approve meeting minutes for City Council meeting December 17, 2018. 

Motion to approve Board & Commission appointments / reappointments. 

Motion to approve liquor license renewal for Deweyôs Jack & Jill at 119 E. Main Street, West Branch, 

Iowa.  

Motion to approve LL Pelling Seal Coat Unit Pricing. 

Motion to approve the annual Mayoral appointments.   

These Appointments are:  

Mayor Pro Tem ï Colton Miller 

Official City Newspaper ï West Branch Times  

Animal Control Facility ï West Branch Clinic 

City Engineer ï Dave Schechinger, Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. 

Public Health Officer - Dr. Thomas Novak. 

Motion to approve the destruction of certain records with Shred-it Services listed on Records Destruction 

form per the Record Retention Manual for Iowa Cities. 

Resolution 1775 ï Resolution to authorize a contract with East Central Intergovernmental Association 

(ECIA) in the amount of $750.00 (with a not to exceed cost of $1000) for grant writing services related to 

removing derelict building(s) on the former Croell Ready-Mix site. 

Motion to approve Fire Department appointments. 

Motion to approve the Claims Report. 
 

December Claims and November Revenue Totals 
EXPENDITURES     12/17/2018  
    
ALLIANT ENERGY     UTILITIES-WATER TOWER    10,431.98  
AMAZON     BOOKS      493.04  
BAKER & TAYLOR INC.     BOOKS      1,574.22  
BARRON MOTOR SUPPLY   SUPPLIES      1,163.15  
BIG TEN UNIVERSITY TOWING   SERVICE CALL     427.00  

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

BP AMOCO     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Motion by Pierce, second by Goodweiler to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Pierce, 

Goodweiler, Miller, Stoolman.  NAYS:  None.  Absent:  Ellyson. Motion carried.   

Councilperson Stoolman asked why we needed to have a grant writing contract.  Mayor Laughlin responded 

that ECIA seemed to think we would be successful in obtaining a grant for the removal of derelict buildings. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING / NON -CONSENT AGENDA 

Resolution 1772 ï Approving a joint funding agreement in the amount Of $8,640.00 between the City of 

West Branch and the United States Geologic Survey (USGS) Iowa Water Science Center for Stormwater 

Monitoring.  

Councilperson Stoolman commented that she thought it might be better to not do any monitoring during the 

year the bridge is under construction. Councilperson Miller said that USGS would remove their equipment if 

we did not continue the tests this year and then charge us for reinstalling the equipment next year.    

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce to approve Resolution 1772.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Pierce, Miller.  

NAYS:  Stoolman.  Absent:  Ellyson. Motion carried.   

 



 

 

Public Hearing: On the proposed amendment to the Amended and Restated West Branch Urban Renewal 

Plan. 

Mayor Laughlin opened the public hearing at 7:48 p.m. There was no public comment.  Laughlin closed the 

public hearing at 7:49 p.m. 

 

Resolution 1773 ï Approving an amendment to the Amended and Restated West Branch Urban Renewal 

Plan.   

Mayor Laughlin stated the purpose of the amendment was to include Little Lights in the amended Urban 

Renewal Area. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Stoolman to approve Resolution 1773.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Stoolman, 

Miller, Pierce.  NAYS:  None. Absent:  Ellyson.  Motion carried.   

 

Discussion: Initial General Fund Revenue Estimates.   

 

City Finance Officer Edgar reviewed the FY20 property valuations and proposed tax levy and discussed the 

changes from last year to this year.  The tax rate is slightly less than last year but will generate about $57,000 

more in revenue in FY20.  He then explained that the city is moving $94,000 to the Debt Service Levy which 

previously would have been paid by the sewer and water funds.  This will enable those funds to pay for other 

projects but will not increase the tax levy for next year.  Edgar said that the Department Expense and 

Revenue sheets he distributed to the Council did not reflect capital expenditures and transfers but all other 

revenue and expenses were recorded on them.   

 

Resolution 1774 ï Adopting a policy authorizing the City Clerk on Deputy City Clerk to pay certain bills 

prior to the City Councilôs Approval.  

Motion by Stoolman, second by Pierce to approve Resolution 1774.  AYES:  Stoolman, Pierce, Miller, 

Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None. Absent:  Ellyson.  Motion carried.   

 

Discussion:  Fund Balance Reserve Policy. 

 

City Administrator Jones presented a plan to move a portion of the Emergency Fund balance to a Reserve 

account each year.  After some discussion, the mayor instructed Jones to draft a resolution for this to present 

at the next meeting. 

 

Discussion:  To include an ñacross the boardò 2.8% cost of living adjustment for city employees be reflected 

in the City Administratorôs recommended budget. 

 

Edgar said the 2.8% is reflected in the budget sheets the Council received.  The new rates need to be 

approved at the next Council meeting. 

 

Discussion:  Receive presentation / explanation regarding Cubby Park deliverables and timeline from (Prime 

Contractor) Needham Excavating Inc. 
 

 

Edgar reported he had received a call from Nate Kass of Fehr Graham asking to have Needhamôs 

presentation postponed to the next Council meeting due to the hazardous driving conditions today and he had 

agreed to that. 

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR R EPORT 

Jones said the Croell property is now ours but the county required a retracement survey be completed on it.  

The cost of the survey will be about $10,000.  Councilperson Stoolman asked about the status of the Casey 

Main Street Store.  Jones responded that the remaining issue seemed to be how they were going to leave the 



 

 

lot and he thought it was going to be seal coated.  He then gave kudos to the snow removal team for their 

effort. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT  

City attorney was absent. 

 

STAFF REPORTS  

Parks Director Russell reported there will be a community meeting at the Mexican restaurant on Monday, 

January 28 at 6:00 PM to discuss Hoover Hometown Days.  People who have ideas about the celebration or 

want to volunteer may come to the meeting to share. 

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER  

Councilperson Miller was asked by a resident to tell the snow removal staff they did an ñawesome job with 

the snowò.  He also reported that Pete Swisher is not able to come to the meetings in a federal capacity but 

Pete thanked the city for their help in these trying times. 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

Motion to adjourn by Goodweiler, second by Pierce.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council meeting 

adjourned at 8:56 p.m.  

  

      

 

                       

 _________________________________________  

                                          Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Gordon Edgar, Finance Director  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION  
 

MEETING DATE:   February 4, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  Motion to Approve Liquor License Renewal for BP Amoco ï 401 

Parkside Drive, West Branch, Iowa. 

CITY GOAL:  Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:   January 26, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Approve Class C beer license including Class B native wine and Sunday Sales privileges 

for Shivji LLC DBA BP Amoco.  Renewal effective February 20, 2019 through February 

19, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion ï Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:        

MOTION BY:       

SECOND BY:       

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION  
 

MEETING DATE:   February 4, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  Motion to Approve the Claims Report 

CITY GOAL : Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:   January 29, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND :  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day 

operational disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report ï Move to Action 

 

REVI EWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:        

MOTION BY:       

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 3 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION  
 

MEETING DATE:   February 4, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  Discussion Item: Receive Presentation / Explanation Regarding 

Cubby Park Deliverables and Timeline from (Prime Contractor) 

Needham Excavating Inc. 

CITY GOAL:  Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Nick Needham, Needham Excavating 

DATE:   January 26, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND :  

Discuss the progress of the project as a whole.  Would also like to discuss the possibility of 

extending portions (concrete paving, final grading and seeding) of the contract or waiving 

liquidated damages.  Since last extension, weather limited concrete paving to only a few 

days where concrete contractor was on site working on fine grading, work had to be halted 

when freezing temperatures started in early November.  Concrete work was discussed 

between the Mayor and Streb Concrete about what was best for the City and longevity of 

the concrete paving, Mayor agreed that it would be best to halt all work till spring.  Concrete 

paving will resume immediately this spring when weather is fit.  Once paving is complete, 

remaining backfill and seeding of the site will follow immediately.  Streb concrete is on 

board to be onsite immediately once the weather and ground is fit for construction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction from the City Council 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:        

MOTION BY:       

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION  
 

MEETING DAT E:  February 4, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution 1776 ï A Resolution to Approve a Fund Balance Reserve 

Policy and to Approve Setting up a New Fund with Funding of 

$72,089 toward an Eventual (3month of operations) Fund Balance 

Goal of $459,072. 

CITY GOAL:  Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:   January 10, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND :  

As reflected in the 2018 ï 2019 City Council Goal Setting Process.  The City of West 

Branch desires to maintain a prudent level of financial resources to guard its stakeholders 

against service disruption in the event of unexpected temporary revenue shortfalls or 

unpredicted one-time expenditures.  In addition, this policy is intended to document the 

appropriate Reserve level to protect the Cityôs credit worthiness and provide adequate 

cash flow based upon the traditional operating cycle.  Reserves are accumulated and 

maintained to provide stability and flexibility to respond to unexpected adversity and/or 

opportunities to minimize the cost associated with short-term cash borrowing.  The 

International City / County Management Associationôs analysis recommends the 

establishment of a formal reserve policy because they ñminimize political concerns and 

considerations of adequate reserve levels and keep the organization more focused on 

providing structural balance in their operations. 

 

The $72,089 funding request is derived from the emergency levies of Fiscal Year 2018-19 

and Fiscal Year 2019-20.  

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution ï Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:        

MOTION BY:       

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

Fund Balance / Reserve Policy 
 

Purpose 
 
As reflected in the 2018 ï 2019 City Council Goal Setting Process.  The City of West 

Branch desires to maintain a prudent level of financial resources to guard its stakeholders 

against service disruption in the event of unexpected temporary revenue shortfalls or 

unpredicted one-time expenditures.  In addition, this policy is intended to document the 

appropriate Reserve level to protect the Cityôs credit worthiness and provide adequate 

cash flow based upon the traditional operating cycle.  Reserves are accumulated and 

maintained to provide stability and flexibility to respond to unexpected adversity and/or 

opportunities to minimize the cost associated with short-term cash borrowing.  The 

International City / County Management Associationôs analysis recommends the 

establishment of a formal reserve policy because they ñminimize political concerns and 

considerations of adequate reserve levels and keep the organization more focused on 

providing structural balance in their operations. 

 

 

Authority   
 
The West Branch City Council is responsible for the approval of financial policies which 

establish and direct the operations of the City of West Branch.  The City Administrator is 

responsible for carrying out the policy directives of the City Council and managing to the 

day-to-day operations of the executive departments, including the Finance Department.  

This policy shall be administered on behalf of the City Administrator by the Director of 

Finance. 

 

 

Monitoring Performance 
 
The City will measure it compliance with the policy on an annual basis during the Cityôs 

budgeting process.  During the course of the fiscal year the Director of Finance shall 

closely monitor the Cityôs revenues and expenditures to ensure Revenues are not used 

beyond any planned usage.  If the target level of Reserves is not met at fiscal year-end or 

is not likely to be met at any point within a ten-year time horizon, then during the annual 

budget process a plan to replenish the Reserve levels will be developed by collaboration 

among affected funds and department budgets based on the requirements outlined in this 

policy. 

 

Funding the Reserves 
 
Funding of Reserve targets will generally first come from excess revenues over fund 

balance expenditures or one-time budgeted general fund investments. 

 



 

 

Excess of Reserves 
 
In the event Reserves exceed the minimum balance requirements, at the end of each fiscal 

year, any excess reserves may be used in the following ways: 
 

1. Fund accrued liabilities, including but not limited to debt service, and other 

budget needs or financial operating pressures in future periods; 

2. Appropriate for purposes of lower or lowering the amount of bonds; 

3. Increase the pay-as-you-go contributions needed to fund capital projects in the 

/ƛǘȅΩǎ /ŀǇƛǘŀƭ LƳǇǊƻǾŜƳŜƴǘ tƭŀƴΤ 

4. One-time expenditure that do not increase recurring operating cost that cannot 

be funded through current revenues.  Emphasis will be placed on one-time uses 

that reduce operating costs; or 

5. Start-up expenditures for new programs, provided that such action is approved by 

the City Council and is considered in the context of multi-year projections of 

ǊŜǾŜƴǳŜ ŀƴŘ ŜȄǇŜƴŘƛǘǳǊŜǎ ŀǎ ǇǊŜǇŀǊŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ /ƛǘȅ !ŘƳƛƴƛǎǘǊŀǘƻǊΩǎ hŦŦƛŎŜ κ 

Finance Department. 

 

References / Sources / Justification  
 
In an article, entitled ñA Risk-Based Analysis of General Fund Reserve Requirementsò, 

dated May 2013, and published by The Government Finance Officers Association 

(GFOA); local governments are vulnerable in the situations of extreme events (e.g., 

natural disasters).  It is critical in these circumstances, public safety functions are funded, 

and the federal and state programs that would help ensure proper funding may take time to 

get assistance for local governments who are likely to have resources stretched thin.  For 

example, reimbursement from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) does 

not always occur right away, so it is important to have reserves to absorb the cost in the 

meantime, and FEMA does not necessarily reimburse 100 percent of the cost of 

responding to an event. 
 
The GFOA also recommends, at a minimum, that general purpose governments, 

regardless of size, maintain unrestricted budgetary fund balance in their general fund of no 

less than two months of regular general fund operating revenues or regular general fund 

operating expenditures.  GFOA acknowledges that a governmentôs particular situation 

may require a level unrestricted fund balance in the general fund significantly in excess of 

recommended minimum level.  The City of West Branchôs goal is to established a higher 

3 month minimum balance based upon: (1) the exposure to significant one-time outlays, 

such as natural disasters; (2) potential impact on the Cityôs bonding or lending rating and 

capacity; and  (3) the cityôs lack of history of having any similar type of fund that would 

protect from having to potentially drain general fund resources for emergencies, capital 

improvements, or other unforeseen situations; There are several examples sophisticated 

reserve programs that segregate reserves into operating reserves, debt reserves, capital 

facility reserves, and replacement reserves; However, at this time the City of West Branch 

is recommending only one reserve fund established at average 3 month of operational 

period.  



 

 

Three Month Operation Goal 

With the unusual austerity measures involved in Fiscal Year 2017 -2018 budget, it was 

determined that actual budget of Fiscal Year 2016 ï 2017 would be a better determining 

factor in establishing a reserve fund balance goal. 
 

Operational Expenditure based on 2016 ς 2017 (Annual Actual) 

Police $ 329,963 

Fire $ 103,344 

Public Works  

Water $ 398,346  

Roads $ 270,531 

Sewer $ 205,397 

Cemetery $ 100,000 

Administration $ 139,465 

Library 
Parks and Recreation 

$ 197,198 
$   92,044 

 
Annual Operation Estimate Total 
Monthly Operation Estimate  
 
Fund Balance Reserve Goal 

 
$ 1,836,288 
$     153,024  = (1,836,288 / 12) 
 
$     459,072  = (153,024 x 3) 

 
 
Recommended Targeted Revenues       

Emergency Revenue Levy (FY 2018-19) éééééééééééééééé $35,525  

 

Emergency Revenue Levy (FY 2019-20) éééééééé..ééééééé. $36,564   

 

Additional Unrestricted Fund Balance funding may be appropriated by City Council 

during the cityôs annual budget process.       

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
Redmond, 

I should have mentioned on the phone, I donôt have any questions or comments on this document, 

looks like a well thought out plan, I like the reference to GFOA, they are a great source for these 

types of procedures. 

 

Maggie Burger, Sr. Vice President, CIPMA  
Speer Financial, Inc. 
531 Commercial St., Ste. 608 
Waterloo, IA   50701 
(319) 291-2077 Phone 
(319) 291-8628 Fax 
mburger@speerfinancial.com 
Speer Financial, Inc. 
A federally registered municipal advisor and charter member of the National Association 
of Municipal Advisors ñNAMAò f.k.a. National Association of Independent Public Financial 
Advisors "NAIPFA". 
 
 

 

 

 
 

Maggie, 

 

Please review this draft policy.  I have left my funding recommendation open to be flexible with 

our current budget realities.  However, I do want to at least recommend the Funds from our 

emergency levy for both current FY 2018-2019 and proposed 2019-2020. 

 

I also would like to have discussion item on the January 22nd City Council meeting.  So if I can get 

your feedback as soon as possible that would allow me time to make any adjustments and have a 

reviewed draft in front of City Council by the 22nd. 

 

Thank you for your assistance in this matter. 

 

Redmond Jones II 

City Administrator 

City of West Branch 

110 N. Poplar St., P.O. Box 218 

West Branch, Iowa 52358 

 

(319) 643-5888 x 13 

(319) 643-2305 fax 

 

mailto:mburger@speerfinancial.com


 

 

RESOLUTION 1776 

 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A FUND BALANCE RESERVE POLICY AND TO 

APPROVE SETTING UP A NEW FUND WITH FUNDING OF $72,089 TOWARD 

AN EVENTUAL (3 MONTH OF OPERATIONS) FUND BALANCE GOAL OF 

$459,072. 

 

  WHEREAS, this policy was reflected in the 2018 ï 2019 City Council Goal Setting 

Process in November of 2017; and   

 

  WHEREAS, the City of West Branch desires to maintain a prudent level of financial 

resources to guard its stakeholders against service disruption in the event of an unexpected 

temporary crisis or emergency; and  

 

  WHEREAS, this policy is also intended to document the appropriate revenue level 

to protect the Cityôs credit worthiness and provide adequate cash flow based upon the 

traditional operating cycle of the city; and  

 

  WHEREAS, the funding for this reserve will derived from the emergency revenue 

levy of Fiscal Year 2018-19 and Fiscal Year 2019-20 in the amount of  $72,089; and  

 

  WHEREAS, future funding levels is to be considered during the annual budget 

process, and the emergency revenue levy is expected to be included in any funding 

consideration; and  

 

  WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve said agreement. 

 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED , by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Iowa that the aforementioned is to be established and funded as prescribed 

herein; is hereby approved.  Further, the City Administrator is directed to execute this 

policy. 

 

Passed and approved this 4th day of February, 2019. 

 

 

 

      _________________________________ 

      Colton Miller, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / Clerk 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION  
 

 

MEETING DATE:   February 4, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution 1778 ï A Resolution Approving Employee Salary 

Adjustment (Market Survey Adjustment). 

CITY GOAL:  Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

DATE:   January 26, 2019  

     

BACK GROUND:  
 
After taking an annual review of salaries and current positions, the position of Finance 

Director has been found to need an adjustment of $4,000.    

These recommendations would not be effective until July 1st 2019 of the new fiscal year, 

and will be incorporated in the Salary Plan of FY 2019-20 budget.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution ï Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:        

MOTION BY:       

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

 
 
SALARY SURVEY 

 
City City 

Administrator 
Police 
Chief 

Library 
Director 

Finance 
Director 

Public 
Works 

Director 

Parks 
Director 

Deputy 
Clerk 

DeWitt 102,587.28 80,856.12 56,094.48 71,339.40 71,955.60  38,563.20 

Tipton 101,999.00 75,250.24 40,581.00 71,932.85 63,100.00 48,380.80  

Solon 75,881.26  61,758.60 52,000.00 81,791.54 31,200.00  

Lisbon 83,185.00  45,926.40  67,392.00 24,523.20 41,662.40 

Tiffin 86,000.00    69,000.00 41,953.60 36,004.80 

Center 
Point 

78,665.60  45,777.26  69,638.40 40,352.00 38,480.00 

West 
Branch 

91,800.00 77,202.06 53,857.70 55,846.96 67,250.56 48,557.34 45,801.60 

 

 
* Blue cells indicate not applicable (no position or function is assumed by other job titles).   

* Tipton being a Cedar County Community and with the parity / similarity with our other    

positions is a good benchmark as to marketability. 

* Solon has a Finance Officer (a new hire) no Finance Director title and the position is hourly   

not an exempt or salary position. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Position Title:  Finance Director 

Department:     Administration 

Immediate Supervisor:    City Administrator 

Classification:  Full Time / Exempt 

 

Job Summary:  The Finance Director, directs financial activities, such as planning, 

budgeting, payroll and accounts payable/receivable.  Oversees personnel administrative 

functions and compliance for all or parts of the city. 

 

Organizational and Reporting Relationship:  The Finance Director will report directly 

to the City Administrator, and will have a working relationship with the Senior 

Management, Department Directors, and City employees. 

 

Essential Job Duties and Responsibilities:  Reasonable accommodations may be made 

to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential job functions.  These job 

functions would include, but are not limited to, these areas: 

 

1. To develop the proposed budget by assisting the City Administrator with 

assembling the department headsô proposed annual department budgets, which 

proposals shall include project revenues, proposed expenditures and salary 

requirements jointly with the City Administrator and shall thereafter submit budget 

submit budget on prescribed forms to the City Council. 

2. Prepare, monitor, amend and maintain the City Budget.  Publish, file adopted 

documents required with proper governmental agencies.  This includes but are not 

limited to monitoring fiscal year end, and upcoming fiscal year budgets. 

3. Prepare financial reports including any annual state required reports; including but 

not limited to the Debt Obligation Report, Urban Renewal Report, TIF 

Certification and all other reports required by law and assigned. 

4. Oversees accounts payable activities and reconciliation of monthly funds. 

5. Administer payroll, complete new hire documents, including employee benefits. 

6. Prepare documents for audits and assist auditor with completion. 

7. Maintain list of investments, reserves, bonds and payment schedules. 

8. Monitor federal/state grant funds as required by law. 

9. Administer assigned human resource functions, which may include various federal 

reporting(s), workers compensation, and drug testing. 

10. Assist the City Administrator keep the City Council fully advised of the financial 

and other conditions of the city and it future needs. 

11. Provide support to the City Administrator as requested. 

12. Perform special projects as designated by the City Administrator 

Job Description  



 

 

 

 

Minimum Education, Experience, and Certification: Degree in Accounting, Finance, 

Public Administration, or other related program of study required with at least three years 

of responsible accounting, budgeting, or finance in an office environment preferred.  

Additional training in accounting and public administration or any combination of 

experience and training that provides the required knowledge, skills, and abilities.  Must 

be competent in the efficient in the efficient operation of a personal computer and have the 

ability to become proficiently acquainted with the necessary financial software used by the 

city. 

 

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities: 

Knowledge of principles and practices of municipal accounting including General Ledger, 

taxation and revenue management, clerical methods, forms techniques and record 

maintenance, standard office procedures and practices; ability to establish and maintain 

effective working relationships with co-workers and the public; ability to effectively 

operate office equipment including computers; ability to compile and analyze financial 

reports.  Must be competent in the efficient operation of a personal computer and have the 

ability to become proficiently acquainted with the necessary financial software used by the 

city. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1778 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING  EMPLOYEE SALARY ADJUSTMENT  

 

WHEREAS, The Finance Director, directs financial activities, such as planning, 

budgeting, payroll and accounts payable/receivable. Oversees personnel administrative 

functions and compliance for the City; and  

 

 WHEREAS, maintaining a competent workforce relies on being competitive in salary 

and employee benefits; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Administrator has reviewed salary data from surrounding 

communities both within Cedar County and outside Cedar County; and  

 

 WHEREAS, salary data justify an increase $4,000 salary adjustment for the Finance 

Director that would place the position in mid-range with the communities surveyed; and  

 

 WHEREAS, it now necessary to approve this salary adjustment.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED  by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa, that the aforementioned resolution is hereby approved.  Further, the Mayor is 

directed to execute the agreements on behalf of the City.   

 
* * * * * * * *  

Passed and approved this 4th day of February, 2019. 

   

  

              

_________________________________ 

                                                         Colton Miller, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION  
 

MEETING DATE:   February 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Motion to Approve a Salary Plan intended to be incorporated in the 

Cityôs Administratorôs Recommended Budget.   

CITY GOAL:  Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

DATE:   January 14, 2019  
 
BACKGROUND :  

This item had consensus in discussion and is ready to be incorporated in the budget.  The purpose 

of the Annual Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) is to ensure that the purchase power of the 

Social Security and Supplemental Security Income benefits is not eroded by inflation. COLAôs are 

typically tied to the Consumer Price Index as determined by the Department of Laborôs Bureau of 

Labor Statistics. This year the adjustment 2.8%. For the same reasons of protecting workers public 

and private organizations use the Federal Social Security Administrations COLA announcement as 

an indicator to declare adjustment in their own salary schedules. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Motion ï Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:        

MOTION BY:       

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 4 

January 2019 ï 2.8% 



 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION  
 

MEETING DATE:   February 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Discussion Item: Consideration Separating the Building Permit 

forgiveness from the Homeowner Rebate Program. 

CITY GOAL:  Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY:  Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:   January 28, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND :  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

November 15, 2017  

 Click here to enter text. 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seek City Council Direction ï Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:        

MOTION BY:       

SECOND BY:        

 

 Non Consent Item 5 

The City Council approved the West Branch Building Incentive Program in May of 

2015 in an effort to attract new residents to West Branch.  The incentive program 

includes   discounted building permit fees, free water and sewer connection fees as 

well as a $5000.00 rebate to the property owner.  The program is scheduled to sunset 

on June 30, 2019. 

 

The program has been successful with attracting several new residents which includes 

a total of 59 new homes since its inception. 

 

While the program has proven successful, it is time to review its effect on the General 

Fund and Water & Sewer Funds. 

 



 

 

Building Incentive Participants / Eligible Homes  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Options for restructuring Building Permit /Incentive Fees 

  
  

Option 1 - based on $250,000 valuation   

No Incentive to builder - revert back to original method   

Project Valuation Fee* (includes inspection fees)  $1,833.75   

Water & Sewer Connection      $804.00   

Water Meter & Reading Device     $250.00   

Total Permit Fee      $2,887.75   

  

  

Option 2 - valuation doesn't matter   

Increase Permit fee to Builder, collect water & sewer connection fees, increase water meter fees to cover 

actual costs   

Permit Fee*        $1,000.00   

Water & Sewer Connection      $804.00    

Water Meter & Reading Device     $300.00   

Total Permit Fee       $2,104.00   

  

  

Option 3 - valuation based on finished square footage   

Base permit fee on square footage vs. estimated valuation   

Total Square Footage*     $???.??     (Still researching) 

Water & Sewer Connection      $804.00   

Water Meter & Reading Device     $300.00   

Total Permit Fee      $TBD 

 

  

*Inspection Fees are included in permit fee   

  

Option 4 -    

Current Incentive Program   

Permit Fee (inspection fees are waived)    $500.00   

Water & Sewer Connection (fees are waived)      $     0.00            ($804 value) 

Water Meter & Reading Device     $250.00   

Total Permit Fee*         $750.00   

 

 

 

 

 

Increasep Increase price to cover actual costs - verify with Matt G 

 

Increasep Need to get these fees back, no longer should waive 

Increase price to cover actual costs ï verify with Matt G 

Increasep Need to get these fees back, no longer should waive 

Increase price to cover actual costs ï verify with Matt G 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION  
 

MEETING DATE:   February 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Motion to Approve Revenue Estimates to be incorporated in the 

City Administratorôs Recommended Budget. 

CITY GOAL:  Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon R. Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:   January 27, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND :  
 
This Item was discussed and consensus reached regarding the estimates for the general levy, 

property valuations, special revenue levies, and the debt service levy.  This is reflected on 

the draft 16-142 Budget and Certification reviewed at our last meeting. 

 

Consensus was also reached regarding having future discussions regarding considering 

bring forward a referendum to use of the capital improvement Reserve.  Discussions should 

begin in August / September. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Motion ï Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:        

MOTION BY:       

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION  
 

MEETING DATE:   February 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Motion to Approve Department non-salary Expenditures (City 

Goals that will be funded). 

CITY GOAL:  Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:   January 27, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND :  

The City Council recently undergone a goal setting exercise in which the following goals 

were reaffirmed: 
1. Promote Quality of life including public safety, Community Pride Events, Strong Citizen 

Involvement, Park and Recreation, opportunities and investment. 
 
2. Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 
 

3. Develop inviting high profile visual impact prƻƧŜŎǘΩǎ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ƎŀǘŜǿŀȅǎ ŜǎǘŀōƭƛǎƘƛƴƎ 
destination, branding and other that reflect sound use of tax dollars. 
 

4. Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by professionalism, 
progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

 

The non-salary expenditures were built into the proposed budget.  There were items which 

could not fit within the budget and therefore remain unfunded.  These item will be marked 

unfunded.  There are other items that need additional City Council feedback.  These items 

will be marked need additional direction.  Items that are funded which means they are within 

the current budget proposal will be incorporated within the City Administratorôs 

Recommend Budget.  The City Council prioritized the following objectives, tasks and 

activities: 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Motion ï Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:        

MOTION BY:       

SECOND BY:       

 

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

TOP 
o Downstream Widening ς Flood Mitigation (24) ς Funded / partially funded this 

will require appropriating Cubby Park contingency / value engineering funding.  
o Cubby Park ς Additional Operation Resources (12 combined) - Funded 
o Downtown Sidewalks ς Phase 5 (11) Not Funded we will look at the capital 

improvement levy next two years. 
o East Side Water Main Investment (11) Not Funded At This Time.  East Main Street 

from 631 East Main Street to 654 East Main Street ς пέ ǊŜǇƭŀŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ уέ мрл-300 
feet is the project that was originally considered.  This is a potential project 
however two projects have brought funding this project in question.  Project one, 
the I-80 expansion project is an unexpected project that the city will have to do 
(based on pass agreement).  We currently are unsure what the ultimate cost will 
be which will potentially bump other water projects.  Project two, a proposed 19 
unit project (Northside First Addition ς ƭƻŎŀǘŜŘ bΦ 5ƻǿƴŜȅύ ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ ŀŘŘƛƴƎ ŀ мнέ 
water line as a part of that project.  The city maybe in the position (through 
development agreement) to arrange contiƴǳƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ мнέ ǘƻ ƭƻƻǇ ƛǘ ƛƴǘƻ ŀ ƴŜŀǊōȅ 
мнέ ǿŀǘŜǊ ƭƛƴŜ ǿƘƛŎƘ would improve water quality to that immediate area, supply 
better fire protection, provide redundancy in service in case of a water main 
break and allow for better flushing capabilities for the Public Works Department.      

o Creek Maintenance / Clean-up (10) - Funded 
 
HIGH  
o Police Department Squad Car (8) -  Funded 
o Asphalt Shoulder on West Main Street (7) - Funded 
o Police Department Reporting Software (6) - Funded 
o North Maple Street ς Curb and Gutter (6) - Funded 
o Planning Alternative Wastewater and Wetland Research Park (6) ς Funded this 

item is a low to no cost expenditure and will be added to the administrative / 
wastewater task group workload. 

o 2020 1-ton Dump Box and Snow Plow (6) ς Funded we have two options a two 
year loan program that will allow us to get the truck this year and fund half this 
year and pay-off next year.  This will allow us to free up $35,000 that can fund 
other project(s) that may be on the margins for funding. 

 
MODERATE  

o Spring and Fall Cleanup Days (5) ς Funded  
o Renew Building Incentive Program (5) ς Funded we would like to review the need 

to remove water and sewer from the permitting forgiveness program.  It may also 
be good to examine the building permit discounts as well. 

o Orange Street between 4th and 5th (5) ς Not Funded 
o Greenview Connection (4) ς Funded we are looking for the Developer IBC 
o Washing North Water Tower (4) ς Funded  
o Trees Forever Grant Project (4) ς Funded  
o Splash Pad Funding / Contribution (3) ς Potential Practical Funding this will 

require appropriating Cubby Park contingency / value engineering funding. 
o Beranek Park Parking Lot Improvements (2) Not Funded At This Time.   
o Additional Town Hall Updates (2) ς Funded  
o Wayfinding Signage for the Industrial Park (1) ς Funded with the advantage of 

our New Hotel Motel Tax we can fund this item.  CDG will assist the City in 



 

 

reaching out to industrial businesses effected by the loss of signage (due to traffic 
and right of way concerns), we hope to have some public planning process to 
agree on wayfinding signage that has some consensus. 

o Overlay One Alley (1) ς Funded we have identified a solution at terror trail which 
will require a low cost of removal of trees and brush in the city Right-of-Way seal 
coat of reclaimed area.  We will likely need additional staff time to mediate 
neighbor issues. 

o Christmas Past ς Carriage Rides Funding (1) ς Funded we are recommending 
based on the low level of support that we decrease the previous level of support 

o CDG Funding and Coordinating / Festivals (1) ς Funded 
o Music on the Green Funding (1) ς Non Funded at this time, we recommend 

$3,000 and this will still require coordinating efforts with the National Park 
Service and Community Development Group. 

 
ADD-ON 

o I-80 Expansion / Relocation of Sewer Force Main and Water Utility Line 
(Mandatory). ς Funded  

o Heritage Park ς Not Funded At This Time.  Drainage issues effecting neighboring 
ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎ ƪƴƻǿƴ ŀǎ ά5ƻǿƴ ¦ƴŘŜǊέ ŀƴŘ Sod / Lawn repair. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION  
 

MEETING DATE:   February 4, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution 1777 ï A Resolution Accepting Bids and Awarding the 

Construction Contract for the College Street Bridge and Second 

Street Project.   

CITY GOAL:  Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:   January 27, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND :  

The project in question will replace an existing bridge on College Street over the West 

Branch Wapsinonoc Creek within the City limits.  The proposed structure will provide 

two 12ô travel lanes with 4ô shoulders and a 10ô sidewalk on the north side.   

 

The project has received 80% federal funds for design, construction engineering, and 

construction costs.  Firms were solicited and prequalified under Iowa DOT Categories 215 

and 216.  The payment terms of this project will be ñlump sumò agreement with the fee 

negotiated after selection of the successful engineering consultant.  The form of the 

agreement will be in accordance with the requirements of the ñFederal-Aid Participation in 

Consultant Costsò.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution ï Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:        

MOTION BY:       

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 


